
ADMINISTRATIVE REVIEW TEAM  
 

MEETING MINUTES 
 

AUGUST 13, 2015 
 
 
ART Members and Designees: Steve Langworthy, Planning Director; Jeff Tyler, Building Standards 
Director; Matt Earman, Parks and Recreation Department Director; Alan Perkins, Fire Marshal; Rachel 
Ray, Economic Development Administrator; Laura Ball, Landscape Architect; and Aaron Stanford, Senior 
Civil Engineer.  
 
Other Staff: Claudia Husak, Planner II; Joanne Shelly, Urban Designer/Landscape Architect; Marie 
Downie, Planner I; Logan Stang, Planning Assistant; and Laurie Wright, Staff Assistant.  
 
Applicants:  Heidi Bolyard, Simplified Living Architecture + Design (Case 1); Richard Bigham, Bigham 
Services (Case 2); Thomas Raabe, Ohio University (Cases 4 and 5); and Sarah Richardson, MKSK (Case 
4); and Linda Menerey, EMH&T (Case 5). 
 
Steve Langworthy called the meeting to order. He asked if there were any amendments to the August 6, 
2015, meeting minutes. The minutes were accepted into the record as presented.  
 
 
INTRODUCTIONS 

1.  Bryan Residence                 84 S. Riverview Street 
 15-074ARB/MPR       Minor Project Review 
 
Jennifer Rauch said this is a request for the replacement of an existing deck and construction of a new 
336-square-foot deck with new stairs and railing for an existing single-family home in the Historic District 
on the east side of South Riverview Street between Eberly Hill and Pinney Hill Lanes. She said this is a 
request for review and recommendation of approval to the Architectural Review Board for a Minor Project 
Review under the provisions of Zoning Code Sections 153.062, 153.063, 153.066, 153.174, and the 
Historic Dublin Design Guidelines. 
 
Ms. Rauch presented the site that backs up to the Scioto River, noting a steep grade change and existing 
deck. She said the applicant is requesting to remove the existing deck and sliding glass door, and replace 
it with an expanded deck, sliding window, and a single French door to match the existing. She said the 
new AZEK railing will be 44 inches tall and ±56 inches wide with tempered glass sections between the 
posts. She presented pictures of the product line and photos of the existing 204.4–square-foot deck.  
 
Mr. Langworthy asked if there were any questions or concerns regarding this application. [There were 
none.]  He stated the ART’s recommendation to the Architectural Review Board is next week for the ARB 
meeting on August 26, 2015. 
 
2.  Germain Lexus of Dublin – Sign         6500 Shamrock Boulevard 
 15-075MPR        Minor Project Review 
 
Logan Stang said this is a request for the installation of a new monument sign to replace an existing sign 
for a car dealership at the northeast corner of Shamrock Boulevard and Banker Drive. He said this is a 
request for review and approval of a Minor Project Review under the provisions of Zoning Code Sections 
153.066 and 153.065(H).  



Administrative Review Team Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, August 13, 2015 

Page 2 of 5 
 
 
Mr. Stang said the proposed sign will be placed in the same location as the existing sign, which is at the 
corner of Banker Drive and Shamrock Boulevard. He noted that the existing sign exceeds the size 
permitted by Code at 27 square feet. He said the proposed sign will need to be decreased to 24 square 
feet in order to meet the Code requirements. He asked the applicant if they plan to remove the existing 
stone base. He said the proposed tiled concrete base is not a permitted material. He said the Code 
requires the base to match the architecture of the building and sign.  
 
Richard Bigham, Bigham Services, said he needed to clarify with the applicant and that his preference 
was to not modify the base. Mr. Stang agreed and said if the applicant desires something new, he will 
need to receive updated information.  
 
As for the size, Mr. Bigham said he will recommend that the sign not be as tall rather than decreasing the 
length to meet Code requirements.  
 
Rachel Ray inquired about lighting. Mr. Stang said the sign is not internally illuminated; the proposed sign 
will use ground lighting.  
 
Mr. Langworthy asked if there were any further questions or concerns regarding this application. [There 
were none.]  He stated the ART’s determination is scheduled for next week. 

 
3.  Tim Horton’s Demolition        6490 Riverside Drive 
 15-077MPR        Minor Project Review 
 
Joanne Shelly said this is a request for the demolition of an existing commercial building, foundation and 
utilities within five feet of the building footprint in preparation for future development and infrastructure. 
She said this is a request for review and approval of a Minor Project Review under the provisions of 
Zoning Code Section 153.066.  
 
Ms. Shelly presented the site of the demolition plan noting that demolition is just for the building, and 
lighting has already been removed.  
 
Mr. Langworthy asked if there were any questions or concerns regarding this application. [There were 
none.]   
 
DETERMINATIONS 

4. Ohio University Dublin Campus – Joint Identification Signs       6805 Bobcat Way 
 15-068WID-DP           West Innovation District – Development Plan 
 
Claudia Husak said this is a request for two joint identification signs for a college campus at the southeast 
corner of the intersection of SR161 and University Drive, west of Bobcat Way. She said this is a request 
for review and approval for a Development Plan under the provisions of Zoning Code Section 153.042. 
 
Ms. Husak presented the site and pointed out the updated locations of Sign A, a monument sign, along 
University Boulevard and Sign B, a joint identification sign, east of Bobcat Way. She explained that 
originally the Ohio University submitted plans for two locations for Sign B, but Planning recommended the 
southern location.  
 
Ms. Husak presented the designs of both signs. She noted that the text for Sign A reads “Ohio University, 
Dublin Campus” with the logo. She noted Sign B reads “Ohio University, Dublin Campus” with the logo on 
the top half and “Columbus State Community College” on the bottom half. She explained that both signs 
meet Code requirements for size.  



Administrative Review Team Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, August 13, 2015 

Page 3 of 5 
 
 
Ms. Husak asked that all utility locations be shown correctly on all sheets. Sarah Richardson, MKSK, said 
she would. 
 
Ms. Husak explained that the applicant will need to obtain a Certificate of Zoning Plan Approval for each 
sign prior to sign installation. 
 
Thomas Raabe, Ohio University, requested clarification about the easement and the agreement to 
transfer ownership from the City of Dublin to ODOT. He explained the reasons for the two locations 
proposed for Sign B. He said the applicant would prefer the location closer to the intersection. 
 
Ms. Richardson indicated that Engineering had an issue with the sign being over the water main. She 
noted that the water main is 10 feet underground and the sign footings are proposed at 3.5 feet on 
either side of the pipe. Aaron Stanford said that was acceptable.  
 
Mr. Stanford suggested a condition of approval if granting property rights was an issue.  
 
Ms. Husak explained that if the City of Dublin grants an easement, ODOT has to honor whatever 
agreement is in place as it takes over ownership. 
 
Mr. Raabe emphasized if the easement issues could be resolved with the ART, he would prefer the 
original location proposed. 
 
Mr. Stanford recommended the ART condition the approval so the application could be approved today. 
 
Steve Langworthy confirmed the ART could approve both locations. 
 
Mr. Raabe said there was an issue with the wording in Section 4 of the easement encroachment 
agreement since the applicant is a state institution.  
 
Mr. Stanford suggested that the University’s legal department send the City a mark-up of the changes 
they would like in the agreement.  
 
Ms. Husak inquired about timing. Mr. Stanford replied that the Certificate of Zoning Plan Approval could 
be granted with the condition that the easement encroachment be completed by the end of the year. 
 
Ms. Husak said approval is recommended for the request for a Development Plan with five conditions: 
 

1) That the applicant obtains a Certificate of Zoning Plan Approval for each sign prior to sign 
installation; 

 
2) That the applicant updates the plans to accurately to show all existing utilities;  
 
3) That the applicant works with Engineering to obtain any necessary easement encroachments, 

subject to approval by Staff;  
 
4) That Ohio University executes an easement encroachment agreement for Sign B with the City of 

Dublin by the end of 2015 after the easement and right-of-way have been dedicated to the City; 
and   

 
5) That Sign B is limited to one sign on the east side of Bobcat Way in either location shown on the 

plan submitted August 6, 2015 or August 11, 2015, subject to approval by Planning and 
Engineering. 



Administrative Review Team Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, August 13, 2015 

Page 4 of 5 
 
 
Mr. Raabe thanked the ART and Staff for working so well with him. 
 
Mr. Langworthy asked if there were any further questions or concerns regarding this application. [There 
were none.]  He confirmed the ART’s approval of this Development Plan Review with five conditions. 
 
5. Ohio University Dublin Campus – Parking Lot         6805 Bobcat Way 
 15-070WID-DP           West Innovation District – Development Plan 
 
Claudia Husak said this is a request for a 227-space parking lot addition for a college campus at the 
southeast corner of the intersection of SR161 and University Drive, west of Bobcat Way. She said this is a 
request for review and approval of a Development Plan application under the provisions of Zoning Code 
Section 153.042. 
 
Ms. Husak presented a rendering of the overall site that included the existing parking as well as the 
proposed parking. 
 
Ms. Husak said approval is recommended for three Administrative Departures: 
 

1. §153.040(B)(7) – Open Space Plantings – Waiving requirement to provide 1 tree per 1,000 
square feet of pervious site area as being inconsistent with, and impractical toward, meeting the 
objective to create a campus of multiple buildings on a single parcel. 

 
2. §153.040(G) – Parking Adjustment – Providing parking above the minimum/maximum required 

by Code. The applicant has proposed 227 additional parking spaces, which exceeds the 
previously approved maximum parking spaces of 396. The applicant anticipates a total need of 
parking requirement of approximately 623 parking spaces based on the documented needs of the 
large numbers of commuter students enrolled.  

 
3. §153.040(H) – Bicycle Parking – Code requires 1 bicycle parking space for every 15 vehicular 

parking spaces or 16 bicycle parking spaces for this proposal. The applicant contends that given 
the limited accessibility of the campus by public transportation or existing shared used paths, the 
required bicycle parking spaces should be deferred until a Master Plan is completed and path 
linkages are established. 

 
Ms. Husak said approval is recommended for a Development Plan with four conditions: 
 

1) That the applicant continues to work with the City of Dublin on the anticipated Campus Master 
Plan;  

 
2) That bicycle parking spaces be provided in accordance with Code in future phases of 

development in accordance with the future Campus Master Plan; 
 
3) That the Landscape Plan be revised consistent with the comments provided, subject to Planning 

approval; and 
 
4) That the applicant obtains a Certificate of Zoning Plan approval prior to construction. 

 
Linda Menerey, EMH&T, said water quality information and functionality of the walks was yet to be 
determined. Thomas Raabe, Ohio University, said he could provide specific data as tomorrow will be the 
first test with 400 Columbus State students arriving on campus.  
 



Administrative Review Team Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, August 13, 2015 

Page 5 of 5 
 
 
Ms. Husak encouraged the applicant to consider sustainability when working through the Master Plan. 
She said the applicant should also work with Planning to ensure that any existing and proposed utility 
boxes are screened.  
 
Ms. Menerey said the applicant is considering the tree substitutions suggested by Planning. 
 
Steve Langworthy asked Laura Ball to review the open space planting Code provision to decide if it needs 
to be adjusted to be more realistic. 
 
Mr. Langworthy inquired about the student count used to determine the parking ratio. Mr. Raabe 
confirmed he had that data and would send it to Ms. Husak. 
 
Mr. Langworthy confirmed that the applicant was not requesting the bike parking to be forgiven, but 
deferred to a later time when the campus master plan was further along and student paths were better 
determined.  
 
Mr. Langworthy asked if there were any further questions or concerns regarding this application. [There 
were none.]  He confirmed the ART’s approval of the three Administrative Departures and a Development 
Plan Review with four conditions. 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE 

Steve Langworthy asked if there were any additional administrative issues or other items for discussion. 
[There were none.] 
 
Mr. Langworthy adjourned the meeting at 2:40 pm. 


